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Eligibility 

1. Who is eligible to submit a proposal? 

As stated in the Request for Proposals (RFP), organizations eligible to become Municipal Asset Management 

Program (MAMP) partner organizations are defined as registered and incorporated Canadian not-for-profit, non-

governmental organizations with a specific mandate or demonstrable experience supporting Canadian 

municipalities. Organizations must have experience delivering capacity-building activities and preference will be 

given to those with experience in delivering activities specific to asset management (for further details see RFP 

document, section 1.1). 

2. Who is an eligible participant? 

The definition of eligible participants was clarified in this RFP. MAMP’s primary target audiences must be 

municipal employees and/or elected officials (for further details see RFP document, section 2.1.1). Specifically, 

eligible participants are:  

 individuals employed by a local government (e.g. towns, cities, regions, districts, etc.) or elected officials; 

 individuals employed by a not-for-profit corporation that has an infrastructure-related shared services 

agreement with a municipality (e.g. utilities, transit authorities, conservation authorities, etc.); 

 individuals employed by an Indigenous community that has a shared services agreement with a 

neighbouring municipality, or elected officials from that Indigenous community; 

 individuals employed by an Indigenous community that operates under delegated authority by a province 

or territory (e.g. NWT settlements, Metis Settlement Council of Alberta).  

While private sector representatives (e.g. consultants or suppliers) are not considered eligible participants, they 

may participate. However, registration of eligible participants must take precedence over registration of private 

sector representatives. Participation by private sector representatives cannot be subsidized by MAMP funding. 
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3. Are Indigenous governments qualified for this round of proposals? 

MAMP partner organization eligibility: All not for profit organizations, including Indigenous organizations, can 

apply to the partner grant if they fit the above criteria (see answer to question 1 or refer to section 1.1 of the RFP 

document).  

MAMP participant eligibility (or target audience): Indigenous governments can participate in technical assistance 

or awareness building activities if they fit the above criteria (see answer to questions 2 or refer to section 2.1.1 of 

the RFP document).  

Note: there are many types of Indigenous communities with various governance structures. If you are unsure of an 

Indigenous governments’ eligibility to participate in a MAMP training, please reach out to the MAMP team. 

4. Are provincial government employees eligible participants?  

No, eligible participants must be municipal employees and/or elected officials (for further details see RFP 

document, section 2.1.1). While provincial and territorial employees are not considered eligible participants, they 

may participate. However, registration of eligible participants must take precedence and the participation of non-

eligible participants representatives cannot be subsidized by MAMP funding.  

Timeline and Budget 

5. Can we have an extension to the submission deadline date? 

No, in order to ensure a fair and efficient process, we will not grant any extensions for the submission of a 

proposal. An FCM review committee, composed of internal and external members, will assess all eligible 

proposals and this schedule is established months in advance.  

6. Is there any more information you can give us with regards to the minimum or maximum 
amount for proposals? How will the funding envelope distributed across the country? We 
have several projects we would love to do, but realize there are limited resources.   

There are no minimum or maximum amounts set for proposals. Proponents are encouraged to submit a proposal 

for activities that best meet the needs of the municipalities they seek to engage, and have the capacity to deliver 

within budget and the established timeframe. The project and activities will be evaluated in relation to their 

overall value, alignment with the targets, and the learning objectives outlined in this RFP (for further details see 

RFP document, section 3).  

FCM has allocated up to $8 million to this initiative and, as indicated in the RFP guiding principles, the review 

committee will seek to ensure that MAMP is providing access and coverage to municipalities in all jurisdictions 

across Canada (for further details see RFP document, section 1.2).  
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7. When is the final deadline for submitting questions for the second Q&A? What is the new 
total program budget for MAMP? 

Two errors were made in the RFP document (corrected versions in English and French are attached) 

 Section 1.3 - Key dates: the final deadline for submitting questions for the second Q&A is October 7th, 

2019 (not September); 

 FCM’s Municipal Asset Management Program is an eight-year, $110 million program funded by 

Infrastructure Canada (not $50 million). 

8. Would FCM accept proposals with shorter timelines? (FCM prefers that projects last 18 
months (3 phases)) 

Yes, a project can be shorter as long as it fits within the timeframe for round 3 projects which runs from January 

1, 2020, and end by June 30, 2021, with all reporting completed by July 31, 2021.  

Project Scope 

9. What’s new in this RFP? As I prepare to submit a proposal, I am wondering if there have been 
any year over year changes to the guidelines that may require additional attention or focus in 
a particular area compared to previous years.) 

While this RFP aims to build on the work done in Round 2, a few important changes have been made to the 

application process: 

 A new section has been added to the application form - Part 3: Project Summary – to give proponents the 

opportunity to provide  an overview of their project. 

 Using a cohort approach for technical assistance activities: FCM encourages partner organizations 

delivering technical assistance activities to use a cohort approach where appropriate. However, FCM will 

also consider non-cohort models proposed by proponents, such as one-on-one technical assistance 

activities for remote communities, if such a model would be more suitable to reach targeted communities 

(for further details see RFP document, section 2.2.1).  

 Incorporating climate considerations: awareness-building activities must address sustainable planning 

and decision-making around municipal infrastructure, including the integration of climate change 

considerations into asset management practice (for further details see RFP document, section 2.2.2). 

 An additional tab was added to the workplan and budget Excel template: 

o Cost Categories: total project expenditure must be broken down by cost category (this matches 

the reporting template). Please note that project management and administrative costs, and 

development costs for a curriculum or a knowledge product, must be broken down by activity—

not as an over-arching cost for the entire project.  

 Use of an online submission platform: Submittable (for further details see RFP document, section 4). 
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10. Would FCM accept proposals for awareness building activities that target a specific audience 
(ex: engineer only sessions/planner only sessions etc.)?   

Yes, activities can target specific audiences such as industry professionals as long as they meet the definition of 

eligible participants in this RFP. Namely, participants must be municipal employees and/or elected officials (for 

further details see RFP document, section 2.1.1). 

11. Can the targets for the number of participants and municipalities reached vary per 
provinces/territories?  

In the form, provide the total number of participants and municipalities targeted for the activity. The breakdown 

per session or per province/territory can be further explained in the narrative text boxes and reflected in the 

workplan and budget but is not a mandatory part of the proposal.  

 


